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§ 580.1 Definitions. 
As used in this part: 
Act means the Fair Labor Standards 

Act of 1938, as amended (52 Stat. 1060 as 
amended; 29 U.S.C. 201 et seq.). 

Administrative law judge means a per-
son appointed as provided in 5 U.S.C. 
3105 and subpart B of part 930 of title 5 
of the CFR, and qualified to preside at 
hearings under 5 U.S.C. 554–557. 

Administrator means the Adminis
trator of the Wage and Hour Division, 
Employment Standards Administra
tion, U.S. Department of Labor, and in
cludes any official of the Wage and 
Hour Division authorized by the Ad
ministrator to perform any of the func
tions of the Administrator under this 
part and parts 578 and 579 of this chap
ter. 

Chief Administrative Law Judge means 
the Chief Administrative Law Judge, 
Office of the Administrative Law 
Judges, U.S. Department of Labor, 
Washington, DC 20210. 

Department means the U.S. Depart
ment of Labor. 

Person includes any individual, part
nership, corporation, association, busi
ness trust, legal representative, or or
ganized group of persons. 

Secretary means the Secretary of 
Labor, U.S. Department of Labor, or a 
designated representative of the Sec
retary. 

Solicitor of Labor means the Solicitor, 
U.S. Department of Labor, and includes 

29 CFR Ch. V (7–1–02 Edition) 

attorneys of the Office of the Solicitor 
authorized by the Solicitor to perform 
functions of the Solicitor under this 
part. 

§ 580.2 Applicability of procedures and 
rules. 

The procedures and rules contained 
in this part prescribe the administra
tive process for assessment of civil 
money penalties for any violation of 
the child labor provisions at section 12 
of the Act and any regulation there-
under as set forth in part 579, and for 
assessment of civil money penalties for 
any repeated or willful violation of the 
minimum wage provisions of section 6 
or the overtime provisions of section 7 
of the Act or the regulations there-
under set forth in 29 CFR subtitle B, 
chapter V. The substantive require
ments for assessment of civil money 
penalties are set forth at 29 CFR part 
579 (child labor) and part 578 (minimum 
wage and overtime). 

§ 580.3 Written notice of determination 
required. 

Whenever the Administrator deter-
mines that there has been a violation 
by any person of section 12 of the Act 
relating to child labor or any regula
tion issued under that section, or de
termines that there has been a re
peated or willful violation by any per-
son of section 6 or section 7 of the Act, 
and determines that imposition of a 
civil money penalty for such violation 
is appropriate, the Administrator shall 
issue and serve a notice of such penalty 
on such person in person or by certified 
mail. Where service by certified mail is 
not accepted by the party, notice shall 
be deemed received on the date of at-
tempted delivery. Where service is not 
accepted, the Administrator may exer
cise discretion to serve the notice by 
regular mail. 

§ 580.4 Contents of notice. 

The notice required by § 580.3 of this 
part shall: 

(a) Set forth the determination of the 
Administrator as to the amount of the 
penalty and the reason or reasons 
therefor; 

(b) Set forth the right to take excep
tion to the assessment of penalties and 
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set forth the right to request a hearing 
on such determination; 

(c) Inform any affected person or per-
sons that in the absence of a timely ex
ception to a determination of penalty 
and a request for a hearing received 
within 15 days of the date of receipt of 
the notice, the determination of the 
Administrator shall become final and 
unappealable; and 

(d) Set forth the time and method for 
taking exception to the determination 
and requesting a hearing, and the pro
cedures relating thereto, as set forth in 
§ 580.6 of this part. 

§ 580.5 Finality of notice. 

If the person charged with violation 
does not, within 15 days after receipt of 
the notice, take exception to the deter
mination that the violation or viola
tions for which the penalty is imposed 
occurred, the administrative deter
mination by the Administrator of the 
amount of such penalty shall be 
deemed final, and collection and recov
ery of the penalty shall be instituted 
pursuant to § 580.18 of this part. 

[56 FR 24991, May 31, 1991, as amended at 66 
FR 63503, Dec. 7, 2001] 

§ 580.6 Exception to determination of 
penalty and request for hearing. 

(a) Any person desiring to take ex
ception to the determination of pen
alty shall request an administrative 
hearing pursuant to this part. The ex
ception shall be in writing to the offi
cial who issued the determination at 
the Wage and Hour Division address ap
pearing on the determination notice, 
and must be received no later than 15 
days after the date of receipt of the no
tice referred to in § 580.3 of this part. 
No additional time shall be added 
where service of the determination of 
penalties or of the exception thereto is 
made by mail. 

(b) No particular form is prescribed 
for any exception to determination of 
penalty and request for hearing per
mitted by this part. However, any such 
request shall: 

(1) Be dated; 
(2) Be typewritten or legibly written; 
(3) Specify the issue(s) stated in the 

notice of determination giving rise to 
such request; 

§ 580.8 

(4) State the specific reason(s) why 
the person requesting the hearing be
lieves such determination is in error; 

(5) Be signed by the person making 
the request or by an authorized rep
resentative of such person; and 

(6) Include the address at which such 
person or authorized representative de-
sires to receive further communica
tions relating thereto. 

[56 FR 24991, May 31, 1991, as amended at 60 
FR 17222, Apr. 5, 1995] 

RULES OF PRACTICE 

§ 580.7 General. 

(a) Except as specifically provided in 
this subpart, and to the extent they do 
not conflict with the provisions of this 
subpart, the Rules of Practice and Pro
cedure for Administrative Hearings Be-
fore the Office of Administrative Law 
Judges established by the Secretary at 
29 CFR part 18 shall apply to adminis
trative proceedings under this subpart. 

(b) Subpart B of the Rules of Practice 
and Procedure for Administrative 
Hearings Before the Office of Adminis
trative Law Judges (29 CFR part 18, 
subpart B) shall apply except as fol
lows: Notwithstanding the provisions 
of subpart B, including the hearsay 
rule (§ 18.802), testimony of current or 
former Department of Labor employees 
concerning information obtained in the 
course of investigations and conclu
sions thereon, as well as any docu
ments contained in Department of 
Labor files (other than the investiga
tion file concerning the violation(s) as 
to which the penalty in litigation has 
been assessed), shall be admissible in 
proceedings under this subpart. Noth
ing in this paragraph is intended to 
limit the admissibility of any evidence 
which is otherwise admissible under 29 
CFR part 18, subpart B. 

§ 580.8 Service and computation of 
time. 

(a) Service of documents under this 
subpart shall be made by delivery to 
the individual, an officer of a corpora
tion, or attorney of record or by mail
ing the determination to the last 
known address of the individual, offi
cer, or attorney. If done by mail, serv
ice is complete upon mailing. If done in 
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§ 580.9 

person, service is complete upon hand
ing it to the attorney, officer or party; 
by leaving it at the office with a clerk 
or person in charge, or leaving it at a 
conspicuous place in the office if no 
one is in charge; or by leaving it at the 
attorney’s or party’s residence. 

(b) Two (2) copies of all pleadings and 
other documents required for any ad
ministrative proceeding provided by 
this subpart shall be served on the at
torneys for the Department of Labor. 
One copy shall be served on the Asso
ciate Solicitor, Division of Fair Labor 
Standards, Office of the Solicitor, U.S. 
Department of Labor, 200 Constitution 
Avenue NW., Washington, DC 20210, and 
one copy on the attorney representing 
the Department in the proceeding. 

(c) Time will be computed beginning 
with the day following the action and 
includes the last day of the period un
less it is a Saturday, Sunday, or feder
ally-observed holiday, in which case 
the time period includes the next busi
ness day. 

§ 580.9 Commencement of proceeding. 

Each administrative proceeding per
mitted under the Act and these regula
tions shall be commenced upon receipt 
of a timely request for hearing filed in 
accordance with § 580.6 of this subpart. 

REFERRAL FOR HEARING 

§ 580.10 Referral to Administrative 
Law Judge. 

(a) Upon receipt of a timely excep
tion to a determination of penalties 
and request for a hearing filed pursu
ant to and in accordance with § 580.6 of 
this subpart, the Administrator, by the 
Associate Solicitor for the Division of 
Fair Labor Standards or by the Re
gional Solicitor for the Region in 
which the action arose, shall, by Order 
of Reference, refer the matter to the 
Chief Administrative Law Judge, for a 
determination in an administrative 
proceeding as provided herein. A copy 
of the notice of administrative deter
mination and of the request for hearing 
shall be attached to the Order of Ref
erence and shall, respectively, be given 
the effect of a complaint and answer 
thereto for purposes of the administra
tive proceeding, subject to any amend-

29 CFR Ch. V (7– 1– 02 Edition) 

ment that may be permitted under this 
subpart and 29 CFR part 18. 

(b) A copy of the Order of Reference 
and attachments thereto, together 
with a copy of this part, shall be served 
by counsel for the Administrator upon 
the person requesting the hearing, in 
the manner provided in § 580.8 of this 
subpart. 

§ 580.11 Appointment of Administra
tive Law Judge and notification of 
prehearing conference and hearing 
date. 

Upon receipt from the Administrator 
of an Order of Reference, the Chief Ad
ministrative Law Judge shall appoint 
an Administrative Law Judge to hear 
the case. The Administrative Law 
Judge shall notify all interested par-
ties of the time and place of a pre-
hearing conference and of the hearing. 

§ 580.12 Decision and Order of Admin
istrative Law Judge. 

(a) The Administrative Law Judge 
shall render a decision on the issues re
ferred by the Administrator. 

(b) The decision of the Administra
tive Law Judge shall be limited to a de-
termination of whether the respondent 
has committed a violation of section 
12, or a repeated or willful violation of 
section 6 or section 7 of the Act, and 
the appropriateness of the penalty as
sessed by the Administrator. The Ad
ministrative Law Judge shall not 
render determinations on the legality 
of a regulatory provision or the con
stitutionality of a statutory provision. 

(c) The decision of the Administra
tive Law Judge shall include a state
ment of findings and conclusions, with 
reasons and basis therefor, upon each 
material issue presented on the record. 
The decision shall also include an ap
propriate order which may affirm, 
deny, reverse, or modify, in whole or in 
part, the determination of the Admin
istrator. 

(d) The Administrative Law Judge 
shall serve copies of the decision on 
each of the parties. 

(e) The decision of the Administra
tive Law Judge shall constitute the 
final order of the Secretary unless, pur
suant to § 580.13 of this part, there is an 
appeal to the Secretary. 
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§ 580.13 Procedures for appeals to the
Secretary. 

Any party desiring review of a deci
sion of the Administrative Law Judge 
shall file an appeal with the Secretary. 
To be effective, such appeal must be re
ceived by the Secretary within 30 days 
of the date of the decision of the Ad
ministrative Law Judge. Copies of the 
appeal shall be served on all parties 
and on the Chief Administrative Law 
Judge. If no timely appeal has been 
filed, the decision of the Administra
tive Law Judge shall be deemed the 
final agency action. 

§ 580.14 Filing and Service. 

(a) Filing. All documents submitted 
to the Secretary shall be filed with the 
Secretary of Labor, U.S. Department of 
Labor, Washington, DC 20210. 

(b) Number of copies. An original and 
two copies of all documents shall be 
filed. 

(c) Computation of time for delivery 
by mail. Documents are not deemed 
filed with the Secretary until actually 
received by the Secretary either on or 
before the due date. No additional time 
shall be added where service of a docu
ment requiring action within a pre-
scribed time was made by mail. 

(d) Manner and proof of service. A 
copy of each document filed with the 
Secretary shall be served upon all 
other parties involved in the pro
ceeding. Service under this section 
shall be by personal delivery or by 
mail. Service by mail is deemed ef
fected at the time of mailing to the 
last known address. 

§ 580.15 Responsibility of the Office of 
Administrative Law Judges for the
administrative record. 

Upon receipt of a petition seeking re-
view of the Decision and Order of an 
Administrative Law Judge, the Chief 
Administrative Law Judge shall 
promptly forward a copy of the com
plete hearing record to the Secretary. 

§ 580.16 Final decision of the Sec
retary. 

The Secretary’s final decision shall 
be served upon all parties and the Chief 
Administrative Law Judge, in person 
or by mail to the last known address. 

§ 580.18 

§ 580.17 Retention of official record. 
The official record of every com

pleted administrative hearing provided 
by this part shall be maintained and 
filed under the custody and control of 
the Chief Administrative Law Judge. 

§ 580.18 Collection and recovery of 
penalty. 

(a) When the determination of the 
amount of any civil money penalty 
provided for in this part becomes final 
under § 580.5 in accordance with the ad
ministrative assessment thereof, or 
pursuant to the decision and order of 
an Administrative Law Judge in an ad
ministrative proceeding as provided in 
§ 580.12, or the decision of the Secretary 
pursuant to § 580.16, the amount of the 
penalty as thus determined is imme
diately due and payable to the U.S. De
partment of Labor. The person against 
whom such penalty has been assessed 
or imposed shall promptly remit the 
amount thereof, as finally determined, 
to the Secretary by certified check or 
by money order, made payable to the 
order of Wage and Hour Division. Such 
remittance shall be delivered or mailed 
to the Regional Office, Wage and Hour 
Division, for the area in which the vio
lations for which the penalty was as
sessed occurred. 

(b) Pursuant to section 16(e) of the 
Act, the amount of the penalty, finally 
determined as provided in § 580.5, 
§ 580.12 or § 580.16, may be: 

(1) Deducted from any sums owing by 
the United States to the person 
charged. To effect this, any agency 
having sums owing from the United 
States to such person shall, on the re-
quest of the Secretary, withhold the 
specific amount of the penalty from 
the sums owed to the person so charged 
and remit the amount to the Secretary 
to satisfy the amount of the penalty 
assessed; 

(2) Recovered in a civil action 
brought by the Secretary in any court 
of competent jurisdiction, in which 
litigation the Secretary shall be rep
resented by the Solicitor of Labor. 
When the person against whom a final 
determination assessing a civil money 
penalty has been made does not volun
tarily remit the amount of such pen
alty to the Secretary within a reason-
able time after notification to do so, 
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the Solicitor of Labor may institute 
such an action to recover the amount 
of the penalty; or 

(3) Ordered by the court, in an action 
brought for a violation of section 
15(a)(4) or a repeated or willful viola
tion of section 15(a)(2), to be paid to 
the Secretary. Any such unlawful act 
or practice may be enjoined by the 
United States district courts under sec
tion 17 upon court action, filed by the 
Secretary; and failure of the person so 
enjoined to comply with the court 
order may subject such person to con-
tempt proceedings. A willful violation 
of section 6, 7, or 12 of the Act may sub
ject the offender to the penalties pro
vided in section 16(a) of the Act, en-
forced by the Department of Justice in 
criminal proceedings in the United 
States courts. In any of the foregoing 
civil or criminal proceedings, the court 
may order the payment to the Sec
retary of the civil penalty finally as
sessed by the Secretary. 
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